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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

TALLAHASSEE DIVISION 

COMPETITIVE CARRIERS OF THE 
SOUTH, INC. 

and 

FLORIDA DIGITAL NETWORK, INC., 

- Plaintiffs, 

V. 

LISA POLAK EDGAR, Chairman of the 
Florida Public Service Commission, in her 
official capacity; MATTHEW M. CARTER 
11, and KATRINA J. McMURRTAN, in their 
official capacities as Commissioners of the 
Florida Public Service Commission; 

EMBARQ FLORIDA, INC., 

Defendants. 

COMPLAINT 



Plaintiffs, Competitive Carriers of the South, Inc. (CompSouth) and Florida 

Digital Network, Inc. (FDN), by and through undersigned counsel, do hereby file this 

Complaint and allege the following: 

NATURE OF THE ACTION 

1. This action is brought to enforce federal law, including the U.S. 

Constitution, specifically the Supremacy Clause and Impairment of Contract Clause, and 

various provisions of the Telecommunications Act of 1996, including, without limitation, 

47 U.S.C. $0 251(c)(3), 252(d), and state law, including, without limitation, the state 

constitutional provision prohibiting impairment of contract. This matter involves a 

decision of the Florida Public Service Commission (FPSC) that permits Embarq Florida, 

Inc. (Embarq) to increase the rates that Plaintiffs pay to Embarq pursuant to federally- 

mandated interconnection agreements (ICAs). ICAs are contracts that govern the Parties’ 

business relationships in the telecommunications market. Prices contained in the ICAs 

for the purchase of unbundled network elements (UNEs) - the piece parts of the 

telecommunications network -- are set pursuant to federal law. Federal law requires the 

UNE prices which the FPSC approves pursuant to federal regulatory requirements, and 

whch Embarq charges to Plaintiffs, to be set at Total Elemental Long Run Incremental 

Cost (TELRIC). 

2. Defendant FPSC violated these federal requirements by permitting 

Defendant Embarq to charge Plaintiffs prices for UNEs in excess of TELRIC. Defendant 

FPSC violated federal requirements by permitting Defendant Embarq to increase ICA 

prices without an amendment to the ICAs. Defendant FPSC violated federal and state 
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law by impairing the Parties’ contracts and by permitting Defendant Embarq to charge 

arbitrary, capricious and unreasonable rates for UNEs. The FPSC’s action violates its 

authority under 47 U.S.C. $5 251, 252; Article I, Section 10 of the U.S. Constitution; 

Chapter 364, Florida Statutes; and Article I, Section 10 of the Florida Constitution. 

3. Plaintiffs seek a ruling from this Court finding that Final Order No. PSC- 

07-0126-FOF-TL’ is invalid and of no force and effect because it violates federal and 

state law and is preempted by federal law, and requiring a refund of all monies paid, with 

interest, pursuant to the Final Order. 

4. The FPSC issued the Final Surcharge Order as a result of a petition filed 

by Embarq. In its petition, Embarq sought to assess and collect a $.50 cent charge on 

UNEs based on a state statute. This statute, as applied by the FPSC in its decision, 

violates federal law which preempts the increased UNE charges Embarq proposed and 

which the FPSC approved. Thus, the FPSC’s Final Surcharge Order violates the 

Supremacy Clause of the United States Constitution2, as well as the federal3 and state4 

prohibitions against impairment of contract. The Final Surcharge Order is also arbitrary, 

capricious, and unreasonable. The state statute’, pursuant to which the charge was 

approved, is unconstitutional as applied by Commissioner Defendants. 

’ Petition to Recover 2005 Tropical System Related Costs and Expenses, by Embarq 
Florida, Inc., Docket No. 060644-TL (Feb. 12, 2007) (“Final Surcharge Order”) 
(Exhibit A). 
~ r t .  VI., U.S. Const. 
~ r t .  I, 9 IO, US. Const. 
Art. I. 0 10, F1. Const. 
Section 364.05 1(4), Florida Statutes. 

c 
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PARTIES 

5. Plaintiff, CompSouth is a not-for-profit corporation organized under the 

laws of Florida, comprised of competitive telecommunications providers. CompSouth 

members are Competitive Local Exchange Carriers (CLECs) who compete with 

incumbent carriers, like Embarq, to provide telecommunications services to retail end 

users. 

6 .  FDN is a corporation organized under the laws of Delaware with its 

principal place of business at 2301 Lucien Way, Suite 200, Maitland, FL 3275 1. FDN is 

a CLEC and provides telephone services in Florida in competition with Embarq. 

7 .  Defendant Embarq is a Florida corporation. Embarq has offices in Florida 

located at 1313 Blair Stone Road Tallahassee, Florida 32301. Embarq is a “Local 

Exchange Carrier” within the meaning of 47 U.S.C. Q 153(26). Embarq is an “Incumbent 

Local Exchange Carrier” under the Act. Embarq provides local exchange, exchange 

access, and certain intrastate long-distance services within Florida. 

8. Defendant Lisa Polak Edgar, Chairman of the FPSC, serves on the FPSC. 

Chairman Edgar’s business address is 2540 Shumard Oak Blvd., Tallahassee, FL 32399- 

0850. 

9. Defendant Matthew M. Carter 11, Commissioner of the FPSC, serves on 

the FPSC. Commissioner Carter’s business address is 2540 Shumard Oak Blvd., 

Tallahassee, FL 32399-0850. 
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10. Defendant Katrina J. McMuman, Commissioner of the FPSC, serves on 

the FPSC. Commissioner McMurrian’s business address is 2540 Shumard Oak BIvd., 

Tallahassee, FL 32399-0850. 

11. Plaintiffs sue each Commissioner of the FPSC in h s  or her official 

capacity so that the full FPSC is bound by the final judgment in this case. Plaintiffs refer 

to the Commissioners collectively as the Commissioner Defendants. 

12. Pursuant to $86.091, Florida Statutes, two copies of this Complaint have 

been served on the Attomey General of Florida via certified mail. 

JURISDICTION AKD VENUE 

13. 

14. 

This is a civil action arising under federal and state law. 

The Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this dispute pursuant to 28 

U.S.C. 0 1331 because it raises a federal question. The Court has subject matter 

jurisdiction over the action pursuant to the Supremacy Clause of the U.S. Constitution 

and 28 U.S.C. $ 1343(a)(3). 

15. Jurisdiction is also appropriate under 28 U.S.C. 5 1332, because Plaintiff, 

FDN and the Commissioner Defendants, and Defendant Embarq are citizens of different 

states and the amount in controversy exceeds $75,000. 

16. This action is also brought pursuant to 28 U.S.C. $ 2201 et seq. 

17. This Court has supplemental jurisdiction over the state law claims herein 

pursuant to 28 U.S.C. $ 1367, because they arise out of the same set of operative facts 

and regard the same proceeding from which this Complaint arose. 
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18. Venue in this District is proper under 28 U.S.C. 0 1391(b). All 

Commissioner Defendants perform their official duties in Tallahassee, Florida in 

accordance with the laws of Florida. Defendant Embarq transacts a substantial amount of 

business in this District. A substantial part of the events or omissions giving rise to this 

dispute occurred in this District. 

BACKGROUND 

19. Federal law. The Telecommunications Act of 19966 restructured the local 

telecommunications market and ended the monopolies granted to local exchange carriers 

(LECs), like Embarq, to provide local ~ e r v i c e . ~  One of the Act's main obligations 

requires incumbents, such as Embarq, to share their networks with competitors, such as 

CompSouth members, via the leasing of the piece parts of the incumbent's network - 

unbundled network elements or UNEs.' 

20. Federal law requires that rates that incumbents, like Embarq, charge to 

competitors, like CompSouth members, for UNEs must be based on cost.g Such rates, as 

well as other terms and conditions, must be included in ICAs, which are either negotiated 

or the subject of arbitration proceedings before state regulatory commissions.'' 

2 1. The Federal Communications Commission (FCC), pursuant to federal law, 

has adopted the TELRIC costing methodology to set UNE prices. This is the method that 

state regulatory commissions must use to set cost-based UNE rates under the Act. The 

ti Pub. L. No. 104-104, 110 Stat. 56, codified at 47 USC $ 8  151 et seq. (the Act). 

* 47 USC 5 251(c)(3). 

'' 47 USC 5 252(a), (b). 

AT&T Corp. v. Iowa Utilities Board, 525 US 366,370 (1999). 

47 USC 252(d)(l)(A). 
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United States Supreme Court has upheld the FCC’s authority to design and designate a 

pricing methodology. The FCC’s authority to require state commissions to set rates 

using the TELRIC methodology has been upheld by the United States Supreme Court.” 

In its state UNE pricing proceeding, Defendant Commissioners recognized that they were 

required to use the TELRIC pricing methodology to set UNE rates to be incorporated into 

I C A ~ .  l 3  

22. The FCC’s TELRTC meth~dology’~ requires UNE costs to be fonvard- 

looking. The FCC defines forward-looking costs as: 

The total element long-run incremental cost of an element is the fonvard- 
looking cost over the long run of the total quantity of the facilities and 
hnctions that are directly attributable, or reasonably identifiable as 
incremental to, such element, calculated taking as a given the incumbent 
LEC’s provision of other elements.I5 

23. The TELRIC methodology explicitly prohibits the use or inclusion of 

embedded costs in UNE rates.16 47 C.F.R. 5 51.505(d)(l) prohibits the inclusion of 

“costs that the incumbent LEC incurred in the past and are recorded in the incumbent 

LEC’s books of accounts.” Federal law expressly prohibits the inclusion of historic book 

’’ Iowa Utilities Bd. at 384-385. 
l 2  Verizon Communications, Inc. v. FCC, 535 U.S. 467 (2002). 
l 3  In Re: Investigation into unbundled network elements, Docket No. 990649-TP, Order 
No. PSC-01-1181-FOF-TP (May 25, 2001) at 23-24; Order No. PSC-02-131 I-FOF-TP 
(Sept. 27, 2002). See also, MCI Telecommunications Corp. v. BellSouth 
Telecommunications, Inc., 112 F. Supp. 2d 1286 (N.D.Fla. 2000), aflm ’d, 298 F.3d 1272 
(1 lth Cir. 2002). 

See, First Report and Order, Implementation of the Local Competition Provisions in the 
Telecommunications Act of 1996, 11 FCCR 15,499, 15,844, T[ 672 (1996); 47 C.F.R. 6 
5 1.505. 
l 5  47 CFR 5 51.505(b). 

Control, 375 F. Supp. 2d 86 (D. Corm. 2005). 

14 

47 CFR 5 5 1.505(d)( 1); WorldCom, Inc. v. Connecticut Department of Public Utility 16 
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costs and expenses related to repair, replacement or restoration of lines, plants or 

facilities damaged in the past in UNE rates. 

24. State law. Section 364.05 1(4), Florida Statutes, permits incumbent 

telecommunications companies to elect the more flexible price cap regulation in lieu of 

traditional rate of return regulation. This state statute generally governs retail (not 

wholesale) rates. The statute permits incumbents to increase intrastate rates only in 

limited circumstances and only after an evidentiary showing of substantially changed 

circumstances. 

25. Section 364.05 1(4)(b), Florida Statutes, provides that damage that has 

occurred to an incumbent’s lines, plants or facilities as a result of a named tropical storm 

or hurricane automatically meets the “changed circumstances” criterion. In that 

circumstance, 5 364.05 1 (4)(b)5 permits the Defendant Commissioners to allow the 

incumbent to impose a charge not greater than 50 cents per month per customer line for 

no more than 12 months to recover storm-related costs. This charge is intended to allow 

incumbents to recover historical costs incurred in making repairs related to storm 

damage. 

26. In apparent recognition of the jurisdictional differences in the 

Commissioner Defendants’ authority over retail and wholesale rates, 0 364.05 1 (4)(b)6, 

Florida Statutes, states: 

The commission may order the c o g  
per access line to the billing statement of the company’s retail basic local 

-- ~ 

telecommunications service customers, its retail nonbasic 
telecommunications service customers, and, to the extent the commission 
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determines appropriate, its wholesale loop unbundled network element 
customers.' 

That is, the statute directs the Commissioner Defendants to determine if an increase on 

wholtsale charges is appropriate. 

PROCEEDINGS AT THE FPSC 

27. On September 25, 2006, Embarq filed a petition at the FPSC seeking to 

recover 2005 hurricane and tropical system related costs and expenses based on the state 

statute described above. Embarq sought FPSC approval to increase the wholesale rates it 

charges to competitive local exchange carriers, such as CompSouth members and FDN. 

28. 

29. 

The FPSC granted intervention to CompSouth'' and to FDN.I9 

On December 29, 2006, pursuant to Order No. PSC-06-098 1-PCO-TL, the 

Plaintiffs filed a pretrial memorandum addressing the federal preemption issue. A copy 

of Plaintiffs' memorandum is attached hereto as Exhibit B. Defendant Embarq also filed 

a pretrial memorandum. 

30. On January 4,2007, a hearing was convened. As to the federal preemption 

and TELRIC issues raised in this Complaint, the Parties' prefiled testimony was entered 

into the record without cross examination, as was all discovery conducted in the case." 

At no time in the FPSC proceeding, did Embarq proffer a TELRIC cost study supporting 

l 7  Emphasis added. 
l8  Order No. PSC-06-0942-PCO-TL (Nov. 13, 2006). 
l 9  Order No. PSC-06-1034-PCO-TL (Dec. 14, 2006). Other intervenors in the case 
included the Office of Public Counsel, and Joanna SoutherlandSugamill Woods Civic 
Association, Inc. and the AARP. 
2o Cross-examination was conducted as to surcharge implementation issues whch are not 
relevant to this Complaint. 
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the rate increase it sought. At the Parties’ request, the FPSC conducted oral argument on 

the preemption issue. 

3 1. On January 16, 2007, the FPSC Staff issued its Recommendation for the 

FPSC’s consideration at its regularly scheduled Agenda Conference.21 

32. The Staff Recommendation stated that the surcharge on wholesale UNEs 

be permitted and that the proposed charge did not conflict with federal TELRIC pricing. 

Staff relied upon and used the same theory set out in the FPSC’s Order No. PSC-07- 

0036-FOF-TL in the BellSouth storm surcharge case in which the same federal 

preemption arguments were raised.22 

33. The Staff Recommendation does not address the issue Plaintiffs raised 

regarding the federal requirement for an ICA amendment to effect a change in UNE rates. 

34. On January 23, 2007, the FPSC voted to adopt the Staff Recommendation 

as to the TELRIC issue. 

35.  The Final Surcharge Order was rendered on February 12, 2007. While 

the FPSC found that the charge at issue was a rate increase, the Final Surcharge Order 

found TELRIC inapplicable to the increase because the costs were “not contemplated by 

TELRIC. . . .”23 The Final Surcharge Order does not address the requirement for an 

21 Staff Recommendation (Exhbit C). 
22Petition to Recover 2005 Tropical System Related Costs and Expenses, by BellSouth 
Telecommunications, Inc., Docket No. 060598-TL (Jan. 10, 2007). A Complaint as to 
this order was filed in this Court on February 8, 2007. Competitive Carrievs of the South 
et al. v. Edgar et al., Case No. 4:07cv48 W W C S .  
23 Final Surcharge Order at 13. 
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amendment to the ICAs to effectuate a rate change, despite the fact that Plaintiffs raised 

this issue.24 

36. Defendant Embarq has indicated that it intends to begin billing the charge 

to Plaintiffs in November 2007. 

COUNT I - FEDERAL TELECOMMUNICATIONS ACT 

The FPSC’s Decision is Contrary to Federal Law Because 
It Increases UNE Rates Above Federally Mandated TELRIC Rates 

37. Plaintiffs incorporate into this Count, by reference thereto, paragraphs 1 

through 36 of this Complaint, as though fully set forth herein. 

38. Plaintiffs are entitled, under 47 U.S.C. 5 251(c)(3) and 47 U.S.C. 4 252(d), 

as implemented by the FCC in 47 C.F.R. 5 5 1 SO5 and related orders and court decisions, 

to purchase UNEs at TELRIC rates pursuant to the terms of their ICAs with Defendant 

Embarq. 

39. This proceeding was not treated as nor processed as a TELRIC cost 

Embarq filed no TELRIC-compliant cost study. Further, Embarq’s p r ~ c e e d i n g . ~ ~  

currently approved TELRIC rates include an allowance for forward-looking storm costs. 

Embarq’s double counting of such costs is also violative of federal costing requirements. 

40. The Final Surcharge Order, authorizing Embarq to charge more than 

TELRIC rates for UNEs that Embarq is obligated to make available to Plaintiffs, violates 

47 U.S.C. $ 5  251(cj(3j7 252(dj, 47 C.F.R. 5 51.505, and the FCC’s implementing orders 

as well as court decisions. 

24 Id. at 21. 
25 See, ie . ,  footnote 13, supra. 
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41. Commissioner Defendants’ Final Surcharge Order providing that Embarq 

is authorized to charge more than TELRIC rates for UNEs evidences an erroneous 

interpretation of a provision of law in violation of 5 120.68(7)(d), Florida Statutes, and 

contravenes or violates a constitutional or statutory provision in violation of 5 

1 20.68 (7)( e), Florida Statutes. 

COUNT I1 - FEDERAL TELECOMMUNICATIONS ACT 

The FPSC’s Decision is Contrary to Federal Law Because It Effects An Increase in 
UNE Rates Without an Amendment to the Parties’ Interconnection Agreements 

42. Plaintiffs incorporate into this Count, by reference thereto, paragraphs I 

through 36 of this Complaint, as though fully set forth herein. 

43. Plaintiffs are entitled under 47 U.S.C. 5 251(c)(3) and 47 USC 5 252 to 

purchase UNEs pursuant to the prices, terms and conditions set out in their ICAs. The 

Act provides a process via which parties achieve an ICA which then governs their 

business relationship.26 The Act provides for agreements amved at through negotiation 

or mediation.27 If an agreement is not reached via negotiation or mediation, the Act 

provides for compulsory arbitration.28 Once an agreement is executed, it is submitted to 

the state regulatory commission for appr~val.~’ 

44. Plaintiffs are entitled to purchase UNEs pursuant to their existing 

approved ICAs until such ICAs are replaced by the Parties (either voluntarily or through 

arbitration) and the FPSC approves the new ICAs. 

26 See, 47 USC 5 252. 
27 Id. 0 252(a). 
28 Id. 5 252(b). 
29 Id. 0 252(e). 

Commissioner Defendants’ Final 
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Surcharge Order illegally and unilaterally alters approved ICAs and sanctions a de facto 

rate increase for the purchase of UNEs outside of the negotiation and/or arbitration 

process the Act mandates. Defendant Embarq’s increased charges for UNE rates alters 

the ICAs (the contracts between the parties) by increasing the UNE rates Defendant 

Embarq may charge for the UNEs it is obligated to provide to Plaintiffs pursuant to 

federal law. Absent an explicit provision to the contrary, the Parties are bound by the 

terms and conditions of the ICAs. Unless and until these contracts are amended with the 

consent of the Parties or through arbitration, the rates Plaintiffs are charged cannot be 

unilaterally increased. 

45. Commissioner Defendants’ Final Surcharge Order, providing that 

increased rates may be charged to Plaintiffs that are outside the requirements of the valid 

ICAs between Plaintiffs and Embarq, and which are not TELFUC compliant, violates 47 

U.S.C. $ 5  251(c)(3), 252, and the FCC’s implementing rules and orders. Defendant FPSC 

does not have authority under 47 U.S.C. $ 5  251 and 252 to unilaterally amend existing, 

approved interconnection agreements. 

46. Commissioner Defendants’ Final Surcharge Order authorizing a rate 

amendment outside of the requirements of the ICAs evidences an erroneous interpretation 

of a provision of law in violation of 120.68(7)(d), Florida Statutes, and contravenes or 

violates a constitutional or statutory provision in violation of 8 120.68(7)(e), Florida 

Statutes. 
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COUNT I11 - IMPAIRMENT OF CONTRACT 

Commissioner Defendants’ Interpretation of the State Statute is Contrary to 
Federal and State Law Because it Impairs Plaintiffs’ Contractual Rights 

47. Plaintiffs incorporate into this Count, by reference thereto, paragraphs 1 

through 36 of this Complaint, as though fully set forth herein. 

48. Article I, 5 10 of the U.S. Constitution provides that: ‘‘No State shall ... 

pass any ... Law impairing the Obligation of Contracts . . . . I ’  Article I, 5 10 of the Florida 

Constitution prohibits laws “impairing the obligations of contracts. . . .” 

49. Plaintiffs have contractual rights defined by their TELRIC-compliant 

ICAs with Embarq. The ICAs govem the conduct of Plaintiffs’ and Defendant Embarq’s 

business relationships, including the rates Plaintiffs pay to Embarq for UNEs. Plaintiffs 

are entitled, pursuant to federal and state constitutional guarantees, to proceed under 

those contracts without the FPSC’s unilateral revision of the terms of the agreements. 

50. Commissioner Defendants’ interpretation of 5 364.05 1(4)(b)6, Florida 

Statutes, so as to require Plaintiffs to pay more than the contractual rates for UNEs 

interferes with and impairs the existing interconnection contracts between Plaintiffs and 

Defendant Embarq. This impairment is substantial and increases Plaintiffs’ costs. 

5 1. Commissioner Defendants’ Final Surcharge Order permits Defendant 

Embarq to unilaterally alter its contracts with Plaintiffs and violates the federal and state 

constitutional prohibitions against impairment of contracts. 

52. Commissioner Defendants’ Final Surcharge Order evidences an 

erroneous interpretation of law in violation of 5 120.68(7)(d), Florida Statutes, and 
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contravenes or violates constitutional provisions in violation of 5 120.68(7)(e), Florida 

Statutes. 

COUNT IV - FEDERAL TELECOMMUNICATIONS ACT 

Commissioner Defendants’ Decision is Contrary to Federal Law and State Law 
Because The Increase in UNE Rates Is Arbitrary, Capricious, and Unreasonable 

53. Plaintiffs incorporate into this Count, by reference thereto, paragraphs 1 

through 36 of this Complaint, as though fully set forth herein. 

54. 47 USC 9 252(d) of the Act requires that rates for elements and for 

interconnection provided under 0 251(c) be just, reasonable and based on the cost of 

providing the UNE. As noted above, the FCC has established pricing rules to implement 

this tj 252(d) requirement, known as TELRIC pricing rules. Plaintiffs are entitled, 

pursuant to these provisions as well as to FCC orders, to pay rates to incumbent 

Defendant Embarq, based on the cost of the UNE purchased. 

55. Commissioner Defendants’ Final Surcharge Order permits Defendant 

Embarq to collect charges which have no basis or relation to the cost of repairing the 

UNEs Plaintiffs purchase and thus violates 47 U.S.C. $8 251(c) and 252(d), as well as the 

arbitrary and capricious standards of state and federal law. Embarq is prohibited by 47 

U.S.C. $8 251 and 252 from imposing rates, terms or conditions on any CLEC, including 

Plaintiffs, which are unjust or unreasonable. Thus, Embarq is not permitted to charge 

Plaintiffs UNE rates which have no relationship to cost and which are not the result of a 

TELRIC-compliant cost study. 
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56. Commissioner Defendants’ Final Surcharge Order permits Embarq to 

charge rates that are excessive, unjust, and unreasonable, and thus violates 47 U.S.C. $5 

251 and 252. 

57. Commissioner Defendants’ Final Surcharge Order that permits Embarq to 

collect arbitrary and capricious charges which are unrelated to cost, is not based on 

competent, substantial evidence in violation of Q 120.68(7)(b), Florida Statutes, evidences 

an erroneous interpretation of a provision of law in violation of 6 120.68(7)(d), Florida 

Statutes, and contravenes or violates a constitutional or statutory provision in violation of 

Q 120.68(7)(e), Florida Statutes. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs request that the Court grant the following relief: 

1. Declare that the Final Surcharge Order, which increases the rates 

Plaintiffs pay for UNEs, is contrary to federal law because it imposes UNE rates which 

exceed TELRIC, in violation of 47 USC Q §  251(c)(3), 252(d) and Article VI of the U.S. 

Constitution; 

2. Declare that the Final Surcharge Order, which increases the rates 

Plaintiffs pay for UNEs, is contrary to federal law because it results in a de facto increase 

in UNE rates without utilizing the required ICA amendment procedures in violation of 

47 USC Q Q  251(c)(3) and 252(c); 

3. Declare that the Final Surcharge Order, which increases the rates 

Plaintiffs pay for UNEs as set forth in their ICAs, is contrary to federal and state law 
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because it impairs Plaintiffs’ contractual rights in violation of Article I, 0 10 of the U.S. 

Constitution and Article I, 0 10 of the Florida Constitution; 

4. Declare that the Final Surcharge Order, which increases the rates 

Plaintiffs pay for UNEs as set forth in their ICAs, is contrary to federal and state law 

because it is arbitrary, capricious and unreasonable in violation of 47 USC $ 9  251(c) and 

252(d) ; 

5. Declare that Defendant Embarq must provide UNEs to Plaintiffs at the 

rates contained in their ICAs; 

6 .  Enjoin all the Defendants, and all parties acting in concert therewith, from 

seeking to enforce and continue implementation of the Final Surcharge Order against 

Plaintiffs; 

7.  Require Defendant Embarq to refbnd to Plaintiffs, with interest, any and 

all charges collected pursuant to the Final Surcharge Order; 

8. Grant Plaintiffs such further relief as the Court may deem just and 

reasonable. 
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Dated: February 20,2007 

- 

Respect fully submitted, 

d Vicki Gordon Kaufinan 
Florida Bar No. 286672 
Moyle, Flanigan, Katz, Raymond, 
White & Krasker P.A. 
The Perkins House 
118 N. Gadsden Street 
Tallahassee, Florida 32301 
(850) 681-3828 (voice) 
(850) 68 1-8788 (facsimile) 

Counsel for Competitive Carriers of the South, 
Inc. and Florida Digital Network, Inc. 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing Complaint 

~ has been provided by (*) hand delivery, (**) electronic mail or (+) certified mail to the 

following on this 20th day of February, 2007: 

(*) Richard Bellak 
Jason Fudge 
Florida Public Service Commission 
Division of Legal Services 
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard 
Tallahassee FL 32399-0850 

(*) Susan S. Masterton 
Embarq 
Post Office Box 2214 
1313 Blair Stone Road 
Tallahassee, FL 323 16-22 14 

(**) Charles J. Beck 
Deputy Public Counsel 
Office of Public Counsel 
11 1 West Madison Street, Room 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-1400 

(**) Michael B. Twomey 
PO Box 5256 
Tallahassee, FL 323 14-5256 

1 

(+) Bill McCollum 
Attorney General 
Office of Attorney General 
The Capitol PL-01 
Tallahassee, FL 
32399-1050 

d Viclu Gordon KaufYnan 
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